MINUTES OF MEETING OF

Campus Reports (continued)	 learning center for Reedley College students. Registration will begin late this semester for positions starting Fall 2005. ∉ Financial Aid Assistant II Lisa Maciel was one of only three volunteers from California invited to attend the American Cancer Society's National Relay for Life Summit on January 27-29 in Atlanta, Georgia. ∉ Accreditation Self-Study update ∉ Black History Month activities
	 Dr. Kershaw reported the following from the North Centers: ∉ The Madera Center College Advantage Program conducted an orientation for over 200 Madera High School students and parents on January 19 and 26. ∉ The First Annual Farm Bureau Water Conference, hosted by the Madera County Farm Bureau, will take place on February 3 at the Madera Center. The conference will focus on water use as a critical element to the economy of Madera and is designed to educate water users. ∉ Black History Month activities ∉ The Betty Upton LVN Scholarship has been established and will be available to Madera Center LVN students for 2005-2006.
Academic Senate Report	 Ms. Maggie Taylor, President of the Fresno City College Academic Senate, reported on the following: ∉ First Senate meeting of the spring semester was held on January 19. John Cummings discussed online grade and attendance reporting for implementation in Spring 2006. Brian Speece addressed concerns regarding construction projects and the railroad underpass. ∉ On January 27-28, several Senate members attended a workshop regarding the practical application of developing Student Learning Outcomes and implementing assessment cycles. ∉ The next Senate meeting is February 2.
Classified Senate Report	 Ms. Lisa Maciel, Reedley College Classified Senate President, reported the following: ∉ Annual Classified Professionals Mega Conference, scheduled for March 22, 2005. The day will feature several breakout sessions and Collin McKechnie as the keynote speaker. ∉ Recruitment for Leadership Class V is underway. ∉ Technology Training Series continues with the next session on Basic Excel on February 17. ∉ Reedley College Classified Senate Night with the Fresno Falcons on March 4 at the Save Mart Center.

Regional Jobs Initiative	Dr. Crow provided a brief update on the Regional Jobs Initiative.
Update	Mr. Forhan stated that it is incumbent that the community colleges embrace the RJI. He attended the annual RJI meeting last week and one of the things that he noted was the emphasis on the construction industry. Mr. Forhan expressed his concern that Fresno City College has not offered a basic construction class for the past three years. Currently on the FCC web site, there are five classes listed for the spring semester. To him, there is a real disconnect and believes the District can do a better job in offering these types of classes to unemployed students. He also asked for a follow-up on this matter.
	Mr. Patterson questioned if part of the problem is that students are being offered jobs and not finishing their classes.
	Mr. Smith conveyed his concern regarding the future of RJI since Measure J did not pass, and questioned if other funding sources were being discussed or if there would be a follow-up to Measure J to try to supplement the funds.
	Mr. Forhan added that the Mayor, at the RJI press conference, stated there are funding sources other than Measure J.
	Ms. Shah suggested that the basic or fundamental classes be made a prerequisite for the advanced classes.
	Mr. Forhan added that another possible problem could be that the message is not getting out to the students of the training opportunities available and immediate employment that can follow.
Consent Agenda <u>Action</u>	It was moved by Ms. Smith and seconded by Mr. Smith that the Board of Trustees approve the Consent Agenda, as presented. The motion carried unanimously.
Employment, Promotion, Change of Status, Transfer, Leave of Absence, Resignation, and Retirement, Classified Personnel [05-21] <u>Action</u>	approve classified personnel recommendations, Items A through H, as presented. (Lists A through H are herewith made a part of these minutes as Appendix I, 05-21).

Consideration to Approve Limited Term Department Secretary Position, District Foundation [05-22] <u>Action</u> Public Hearing on Part-Time Faculty Initial Bargaining Proposals Presented by State Center Federation Local 1533, CFT/AFT, CIO/AFL [05-27] <u>No Action</u> (continued)

<u>Salary</u>

- ∉ Three year agreement moving the salary schedule to 88% parity with full-time faculty
- ∉ Placement of state equity funding on the salary schedule
- ∉ Add steps 5 and 6 to the salary schedule
- ∉ Language indicating full-time faculty teaching overload will be paid on part-time faculty salary schedule C

Benefits

- ∉ Include part-time faculty in District benefits pool
- ∉ Provide District-paid single payer plan
- ∉ Provide buy-in rights to all District insurance plans, with employee paying difference between District-paid single payer plan and cost of other plans
- ∉ District shall apply for state part-time faculty health insurance funds to help pay for single payer plan

Office Hours

- ∉ Provide paid office hours at Schedule C hourly rate
- ∉ Require one office hour for each course taught of 3 units or more
- ∉ Departments shall provide office space for part-time faculty through office sharing and use of other available spaces on campus
- ∉ District shall apply for state office hour funds to help pay for cost of office hours

Grievance Process

- ∉ Binding arbitration of grievances
- ∉ Make timelines in grievance process consistent with fulltime contract
- ∉ State Mediation and Conciliation Services shall provide arbitrator

Leaves

∉ Add Family and Medical Leave Act

Mr. Rowe concluded by stating it is recommended that the Board of Trustees convene a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment. Following the open comment period, no Board action is necessary.

Public Hearing Mr. Patterson convened a public hearing at 5:24 p.m. There being no comment from the public, the hearing was closed at 5:25 p.m.

Ms. Shah asked for clarification of "Require one office hour for each course taught of 3 units or more."

Public Hearing on Part- Time Faculty Initial Bargaining Proposals Presented by State Center Federation Local 1533, CFT/AFT, CIO/AFL [05-27] <u>No Action</u> (continued)	Under "Salary," Mr. Forhan questioned "Language indicating full-time faculty teaching overload will be paid on part-time faculty salary schedule C." Mr. Reznik explained that this has been done all along, but was not in the contract.
Consideration of Agenda Items for Board Retreat, March 18-19, 2005 [05-28] <u>Action</u>	Mr. Patterson asked for suggestions regarding the Board Retreat agenda.
	Ms. Smith stated that it is her opinion that the Retreat should not be a working meeting, but an opportunity for the Board to learn how to enhance their skills, define the Board's role in educational leadership, legislative savvy, ensuring diversity from the top down, how to connect more with the public, and a better understanding of the budget.
	Following a lengthy discussion by the Board members, it was suggested that the issues raised by Ms. Smith could possibly be discussed at a separate meeting and with an outside facilitator, possibly someone from the Community College League, and continue with the past format for the Retreat.
	Mr. Forhan suggested there should be more Board interaction and less staff. Also, he would like to see the criteria for the Madera Center to make sure that it is not replicated at the Southeast Site.
	Mr. Feaver stated he would like to discuss vocational education on a districtwide basis.
	Ms. Barreras asked for a report from the Foundation on how funds are targeted for minorities.
Acknowledgement of Quarterly Financial Status Report, General Fund	
[05-29] <u>Action</u>	The Board acknowledged the Quarterly Financial Status Report

Consideration of Bids, Classroom Building, Reedley College [05-30] <u>Action</u>	A motion was made by Mr. Smith and seconded by Ms. Barreras that the Board of Trustees award Bid #0405-01 in the amount of \$3,192,000.00 to Forcum/Mackey Construction, Inc., the lowest responsible bidder for the Classroom Building at Reedley College, and authorize the Vice Chancellor-Finance and Administration to sign an agreement on behalf of the District. The motion carried unanimously.
Consideration to Approve Selection of Architect for Child Development Center Project, Fresno City College and Reedley College [05-31] <u>Action</u>	 Ms. Smith questioned the difference in the cost of the two projects. A motion was made by Ms. Smith and seconded by Mr. Thonesen that the Board of Trustees: a) authorize entering into an agreement with tBP, located in Concord, CA, for architectural services for the Child Development Centers at Fresno City College and Reedley College; b) authorize the Chancellor or Vice Chancellor-Finance and Administration to sign the agreement on behalf of the
	 District; and approve a Resolution authorizing an inter-fund transfer in the amount of \$120,000.00 from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund for the preparation of the Final Project Proposal for the Child Development Centers at Fresno City

The motion carried unanimously.

Governor's 2005-06 Proposed Budget [05-33] <u>No Action</u> (continued)	equalization issues, the fact is, thanks to this Board and the administration, the average faculty member salary is 105% of the state average. Even though we are not being adequately funded, this Board is making decisions that are helping the faculty get paid well to do a good job.
	Mr. Patterson agreed that it is a very complicated process. He listened to a session on AB 1417 at the recent CCLC Conference and they still are not sure how some of it will be measured and some things will be left up to the districts.
Board Reports	 Ms. Myra Gonzalez, Reedley College Student Trustee, reported on the following: ∉ Mardi Gras festivities on February 8 ∉ Chinese New Year to be celebrated on February 9 ∉ Valentine Vendor Fair on February 14 ∉ Talent Show on February 25 ∉ African American History Month began February 1. The month's activities include: poetry contest, soul food, Karl Ray performing "A Killing in Choctaw," historical facts, and window displays.
	 Ms. Shreya Shah, Fresno City College Student Trustee, reported: ∉ African American History Month activities ∉ Community Concert Band performance to be held on February 3 at the FCC Theatre ∉ Mini Vendor Fair February 8-10 at the campus mall ∉ Spring Service Expo on February 16 ∉ Rites of Passage event on February 16 in the Student Lounge ∉ Club Rush at the Main Fountain area on February 23 ∉ February 28 is the last day to apply for graduation.
Old Business	There was no old business.
Future Agenda Items	Mr. Forhan stated that the Cal Grant applications are due on March 1 or 2. He would like to see the number of students eligible for Pell Grants, how many are actually being served, and would like it quantified on an annual basis.
	Ms. Smith asked that when information is received regarding the proposed Accountability Program, she would like it to be an agenda item.
	Ms. Barreras noted at the October meeting there was a concern regarding the Fresno City College MS&E building and would like an update on the issue.

Future Agenda Items (continued)	Ms. Smith advised at the CCLC Conference she learned that any item can be addressed at any time by the public. Following discussion by the Board, it was agreed that this matter would be discussed with the District's legal counsel to ensure that the Brown Act requirements are followed and the Board's policy amended, if necessary.
	Mr. Bruce Morris addressed his concerns regarding the EIR for the OAB and the requirement for the District to receive public input regarding parking issues.
	Mr. Forhan stated there is apparently a parking garage proposed on the West Lawn in connection with the OAB renovation. He noted it would be a change in the environment and asked if the parking structure component is going forward.
Delegations, Petitions, and Communications	There were no delegations, petitions, and communications.
Closed Session	Mr. Patterson stated that the Board, in closed session, will be discussing:
	CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR [SCFT Part- Time Faculty Bargaining Unit]; Randy Rowe, Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6

Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 8.28 p.m. by the unanimous consent of the Board.

Dorothy Smith, Secretary, Board of Trustees State Center Community College District